MINNESOTA STATE BOARD
OF INVESTMENT
MEETING
June 8, 1994
&
INVESTMENT ADVISORY
COUNCIL MEETING
June 7, 1994



AGENDA
STATE BOARD OF INVESTMENT
MEETING
Wednesday, June 8, 1994
8:30 A.M. - Room 125
State Capitol - Saint Paul

TAB

1. Approval of Minutes of March 2, 1994

2. Report from the Executive Director (H. Bicker)

A. Quarterly Investment Review (December 31, 1993 - March 31, 1994)
B.
C.

Portfolio Statistics (March 31, 1994)

Administrative Report

Budget report

Travel report

Update on 1994 Legislation Session

SBI/IAC meeting schedule for remainder of calendar 1994

Issues to be referred to the Deferred Compensation Review Committee

aOw»

ol A S

3. Reports from the Investment Advisory Council (J. Yeomans)
A. Stock and Bond Manager Committee D

Review of manager performance for period ending 3/31/94
Update on candidates for Manager Monitoring Program
Annual review of investment manager guidelines

Report from the Passive Manager Review Committee
Recommendation to use the Lehman Aggregate
Recommendation concerning the management structure of the
Assigned Risk Plan

ISPl

Alternative Investment Committee E
1. Results of annual review sessions

2. Commitment to a new real estate manager (CB Commercial)

3. Commitment to a new private equity manager (Hellman & Friedman)

4. Report from the SBI Administrative Committee (M. McGrath) F

PN B W=

Approval of Executive Director's Work Plan for FY95

Approval of Budget Plan for FY95

Approval of Continuing Fiduciary Education Plan

Approval of process for Executive Director's FY94 evaluation

Approval of preliminary FY96-97 biennial budget request

Authorization of contract amendment with State Street Bank

Approval of monitoring process for International Investing Guidelines
Consideration of re-negotiated contracts for the Deferred Compensation Plan



STATE BOARD OF INVESTMENT

Minutes
State Board of Investment
March 2, 1994

The State Board of Investment (SBI) met at 8:30 A M. on Wednesday, March 2, 1994 in
Room 125, State Capitol, St. Paul, Minnesota. Governor Ame H. Carlson, Chair; State
Auditor Mark B. Dayton; State Treasurer Michael A. McGrath; Secretary of State Joan
Anderson Growe and Attorney General Hubert H. Humphrey III were present.

Mr. Carlson called the meeting to order and the minutes of the December 15, 1993
meeting were approved.

Executive Director's Report

Mr. Bicker, Executive Director, referred members to Tab A of the meeting materials and
reported that the Combined Funds, Basic Funds and Post Fund had all outperformed their
respective return objectives over the period.

He stated that the Basic Funds are now over $10 billion in size and that the Basics' asset
mix is on target with its long-term asset allocation policy. He said that the Basic Funds
had underperformed for the quarter (Basics 1.2% vs. Composite 1.6%) but had
outperformed for the year (Basics 12.2% vs. Composite 12.0%), three year (Basics 14.8%
vs. Composite 14.0%) and five year periods (Basics 12.8% vs. Composite 12.1%).

Mr. Bicker reported that the Post Retirement Fund was just under $9 billion as of
December 31, 1993. He stated that the Post Fund's allocation to international stocks was
fully funded during the quarter. He said that the total fund had matched its composite
index at 1.4% for the quarter and had exceeded it since 7/1/93 (Post Fund 5.0% vs.
Composite 4.6%).

Mr. Bicker distributed a handout (see Attachment A) and stated that it included a revised
performance figure for the international stock component since inception. He added that
the international component actually had outperformed its target since inception and not
underperformed as stated in the meeting materials. Mr. Bicker reported that the domestic
stock manager group had underperformed the Wilshire 5000 for the quarter (Domestic
Stocks 1.4% vs. Wilshire 5000 2.1%) and year (Domestic Stocks 10.9% vs. Wilshire 5000
11.0%). Mr. Bicker said that the majority of the segment's underperformance was due to
negative tracking error by the passive manager and he added that this would be addressed
later in the meeting during the Stock and Bond Manager Committee Report. In response
to a question from Mr. Carlson, Mr. Bicker clarified that the tracking error only involves
the equities that are passively managed. He stated that the international stock manager
group had exceeded its target for the quarter (International Stocks 4.0% vs. EAFE 0.9%)
and year (Int'l. Stocks 34.3% vs. EAFE 32.6%). Mr. Bicker stated that the domestic bond
manager group had outperformed for both the quarter (Domestic Bonds 0.1% vs.



Salomon BIG 0.0%) and year (Domestic Bonds 11.5% vs. Salomon BIG 9.9%). Mr.
Bicker reminded members that all SBI reported returns are net of fees. Mr. Carlson
voiced his approval of the investment results.

Mr. Bicker reported that the Assigned Risk Plan (ARP) had underperformed its composite
index for the quarter (ARP 1.1% vs. Composite 1.3%) but outperformed it for the year
(ARP 7.1% vs. Composite 6.4%). Mr. Bicker stated that staff has some concerns
regarding the equity portion of the ARP and had recommended that the equity portion be
indexed. He added that the Stock and Bond Manager Committee did not oppose staff's
recommendation, however, he noted that the Committee did have some additional
alternatives they felt should be reviewed. Therefore, he said, further analysis would occur
during the following quarter and a recommendation would be presented to the Board at
the June 1994 meeting. He said that as of December 31, 1993 the SBI was responsible for
nearly $23 billion in assets.

Executive Director's Administrative Report

Mr. Bicker referred members to Tab C of the meeting materials for the current budget and
travel reports and he noted an additional agenda item concerning the review of vendors for
the retirement plans administered by the State University and Community College
Systems.

In response to questions from Mr. Carlson, the discussion returned to the SBI's investment
performance and Mr. Bicker confirmed that over the most recent 1, 3, 5, and 10 year
periods the SBI's performance would be near the 40th percentile in the TUCS Universe.
He added that for the most recent 5 year period, the Basics had outperformed its
composite index by 0.7% (Basics 12.8% vs. Composite 12.1%). Mr. Dayton noted that a
year ago the returns were slightly below the TUCS median. In response to further
questions from Mr. Carlson, Mr. Bicker stated that he feels comfortable with the SBI's
current asset allocation and investment management structure. He said, however, that if
the Board wishes to achieve returns that would place the SBI in the top quartile, he
believes that the SBI would need a 75% allocation to common stocks, which would result
in increased volatility. He also added that it would probably be necessary to use a market
timing strategy, which is not feasible due to the size of the SBI's assets. Mr. Bicker
reviewed the various goals and objectives that have been established by the Board noting
that the SBI has a relatively aggressive investment posture. He said that the addition of
international stock, private equity investments, and the emerging manager program should
provide the SBI with additional opportunities to add value to the Funds.

In response to questions from Mr. Carlson, Ms. Yeomans stated that 3M's assets are
substantially smaller in size than the SBI's. She said that some private funds, similar in size
to the SBI, have established independent subsidiaries of their corporations and have
staffed them like investment management firms. She cited GTE and GE Corp. as
examples. She stated that this type of management structure is totally different from the
SBI and she noted the additional costs associated with paying investment management
staff of that caliber. Mr. Dayton stated that though he had voiced some criticism



regarding the SBI's investment performance when he initially took office, that he feels that
the progress made in the last couple years has been remarkable and he commended staff,
the IAC and the Board on undertaking numerous manager searches and structuring the
funds in a more diversified manner. He stated that the tracking error of the index manager
suggests that passive management is not a guarantee of success. He added that any
amount of incremental return adds up to significant dollars given the size of the SBI's
assets under management.

Mr. Bicker referred members back to Tab C and resumed his discussion of the SBI's
responsibility to review and approve vendors for the individuals retirement plans
administered by the State University System and the Community College System. He
stated that the recommendation had been revised from what was included in the meeting
materials and that staff is recommending a one year extension to the contract with the
current vendors in order for the re-bidding of the contracts to coincide with the merger of
the State University System, Community College System and Technical Colleges Boards
scheduled to take place on July 1, 1995. Mr. Dayton stated he was comfortable with that
recommendation provided that it includes a competitive bid process. Mr. Bicker
confirmed that it would. Ms. Growe moved approval of the recommendation to extend
the vendor contracts for one year and to competitively rebid the contracts at that time.
Mr. Dayton seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Asset Allocation Committee

Ms. Yeomans referred members to Tab D of the meeting materials and discussed the
current management structure of the stock segment of the Assigned Risk Plan (ARP). She
said that currently 20% of the ARP is invested in equities by Voyageur Asset
Management. She explained that initially staff felt Voyageur's investment style would
broadly represent the market, but that it has proven not to do so. As a result, she said, the
fund could be incurring some volatility that is not appropriate for this type of fund. She
stated that staff had suggested moving the equity assets from active to passive
management. She noted that while the Committee agreed that a change is warranted, they
had asked staff to conduct some additional analysis on other possible alternatives.
Therefore, she said, she anticipates presenting a recommendation at the June 1994 Board
meeting. Mr. Dayton asked if this situation raises any questions about Voyageur's
qualifications to manage the Assigned Risk Plan. Ms. Yeomans said Voyageur was
selected at a time when their equity style of management was "in favor" with the market.
She added that when the stock market undergoes change, Voyageur's investment style
could lead to extended periods of underperformance. In response to a question from Mr.
Dayton, Ms. Yeomans stated that she believes an in-depth review of Voyageur is not
needed before its scheduled date and she noted that the bond segment has been managed
appropriately and is not currently an area of concern. In response to questions from Mr.
Carlson, Ms. Yeomans confirmed that when a manager engages in a particular investment
style, it typically results in their strategy outperforming and underperforming the broad
market at various points in time. Mr. Bicker stated that it is important to remember that
this is an insurance company portfolio. He stressed that the SBI believes that Voyageur is
a good manager, but that their style of stock management may not be appropriate for this



type of fund. Mr. Carlson commented that the SBI has made a point of hiring managers
specifically for their style and he asked why Voyageur should be viewed any differently.
Mr. Bicker said that the SBI utilizes multiple investment styles for the retirement funds
while the ARP manager is a totally separate entity. In response to a question from Mr.
Carlson, Mr. Bicker restated that staff had recommended to the Committee that the equity
segment be indexed, and that the Committee had also recommended that staff evaluate
some additional alternatives. In response to a question from Ms. Growe, Ms. Yeomans
said that a recommendation would be made at the June 1994 meeting, after staff have
completed their analysis. In response to a question from Mr. Carlson, Mr. Bicker
confirmed that these different manager expectations only apply to the Assigned Risk Plan
because the ARP cannot be combined with the management of any of the SBI's other
funds since it is a taxable entity, while the retirement funds are tax-exempt. Mr. Carlson
commented that he will listen to the analysis but believes that the end result will be that the
segment is indexed.

Ms. Yeomans reported that the Committee is recommending that the Board approve the
position paper on the Post Retirement Investment Fund. She added that the paper
chronicles the evolution of the changes made to the Post Fund and to the benefit increase
formula. Mr. Humphrey moved approval of the Committee's recommendation, as stated in
the Committee Report. Ms. Growe seconded the motion. Mr. Carlson asked if the
retirees had reviewed the changes discussed in the position paper. Mr. Bicker explained
that all of the changes had been discussed and supported by the retirees and that they had
already taken effect. He added that the position paper is just a means of formally stating
in writing the policies that the Board has adopted. Mr. Whitaker, a representative of the
Coalition of Retiree Organizations, agreed. The motion passed.

Stock and Bond Manager Committee Report
Ms. Yeomans referred members to Tab E of the meeting materials and noted that Manager
Commentaries for each active manager are included in Tab H.

Ms. Yeomans reported that staff had presented the Committee with a performance update
on Wilshire Asset Management, the SBI's passive equity manager. She said the update
noted that the firm's tracking error had increased recently which raises concerns about
Wilshire's future capabilities. She noted that Wilshire had been retained in 1983 and that
the firm's last review conducted in December 1992 had been satisfactory. Ms. Yeomans
reported that staff had proposed conducting a passive manager search and had also
suggested that the SBI consider replacing the Wilshire 5000 with the Russell 3000 as the
SBI's asset class target for domestic equities. She explained that the Russell 3000 is also a
broad market index and that staff believe it may be a more appropriate target since it only
includes the stocks of companies that are accessible to large institutional managers. Ms.
Yeomans stated that the Committee felt that they were not prepared to make such major
decisions without further review. She said the recommendation from the Committee is to
establish a Passive Manager Review Committee which will evaluate both the asset class
target and the passive manager alternatives. She added that, if established, the Review
Committee would present a recommendation to the Board at the June 1994 meeting. Mr.



Dayton moved approval of the Committee's recommendation to establish the Passive
Manager Review Commiittee, as stated in the Committee Report. Mr. McGrath seconded
the motion. The motion passed.

Alternative Investment Committee Report

Ms. Yeomans referred members to Tab F of the meeting materials and stated that the
Committee has recommendations for three new investments for the Board to consider.
She said the first recommendation is an investment in a fund called The Realty Associates
IIT with TA Associates Realty for $40 million or 20% of the fund, whichever is less. In
response to a question from Mr. Carlson, Mr. Bicker stated that this real estate manager
has performed very well, outperforming real estate indexes and making money when most
real estate managers have underperformed. Mr. Dayton noted his concern with the real
. estate area in general. In response to a question from Mr. Dayton, Mr. Bicker stated that
he believes now is a much better time to invest in real estate than it was three years ago
due to the stronger economy. He emphasized that investing large sums in real estate
requires more lead time than investing in the stock or bond markets and that waiting too
long can result in missed opportunities for increased returns. In response to questions
from Ms. Growe, Mr. Bicker stated that the Basics have approximately $524 million
available for investment in alternative assets. In response to questions from Mr. Carlson,
Mr. Bicker said that he believes the key in evaluating the real estate market is the state of
the economy and whether lease rates can be maintained or increased. He added that no
one can guarantee that the real estate market has "bottomed-out," but he said he believes
it is much closer than it was before. In response to a question from Mr. Dayton, Mr.
Bicker said that he believes the investment with TA Associates is capable of not only
helping to diversify portfolio, but also providing the SBI with its targeted return. Mr.
Humphrey moved approval of the Committee's recommendation, as stated in the
Committee Report. Mr. McGrath seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Ms. Yeomans reported that the second recommendation is for a venture capital investment
in Coral Partners IV. She explained that the Coral Group was formerly IAI Venture
Capital Group and that the SBI has invested in previous funds. She added that many of
the fund's investments are likely to be in Minnesota. Mr. McGrath moved approval of the
Committee's recommendation, as stated in the Committee Report. Ms. Growe seconded
the motion. The motion passed.

Ms. Yeomans stated that the third recommendation involves an additional investment with
an existing private equity manager, Summit Partners in Summit Subordinated Debt Fund
Limited Partnership for the Post Retirement Fund. Mr. Dayton asked if the strategy is
going to be to make separate alternative investment selections for the Basics and Post
Fund or if they both may invest in the same funds on a pro-rated basis. Mr. Bicker stated
that since many venture capital funds do not return money for several years, staff is
focusing on investments for the Post Fund that have immediate income which will be
applied toward the benefit increase and "equity kickers" which will provide retirees with
additional potential returns over the long-term. Mr. Carlson commented that he believes
that it is important to structure each fund's participation so that there is a clear distinction



regarding which investments are owned by each fund. Mr. McGrath moved approval of
the Committee's recommendation, as stated in the Committee Report. Mr. Dayton
seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Administrative Committee Report

Mr. McGrath referred members to Tab G of the meeting materials and noted that an
update on the police and fire pension fund activity is included for the Board's information
and review.

Mr. McGrath stated that the Committee had reviewed the contract negotiations with
vendors in the Deferred Compensation Plan and he summarized the respective roles of the
Minnesota State Retirement System (MSRS) and the SBI in the negotiating process. He
asked Mr. Bicker to update members on the negotiations with the insurance companies
and Mr. Bergstrom to give an update on the negotiations with the service organizations.

Mr. Bicker referred members to the meeting materials for a summary and comparison of
the current and proposed terms of the contracts. He emphasized that the Board was not
being asked to vote on the actual contracts at this meeting, but only on whether or not to
accept the letters of intent from the vendors which, if approved, would allow the re-
negotiation process to continue. He noted that the letters of intent are not legally binding.
Mr. Bicker explained all of the proposed terms outlined in the letters of intent and how
they differ from the terms that currently exist in the contracts concerning range of
investment options, portability, termination provisions and marketing/service
arrangements. He said that he believes the proposed terms represent substantial
improvements over the current contracts. He stated that if the program was in a start-up
mode, it might be possible to achieve additional improvements on some terms, but that it
becomes difficult when the program already exists. He emphasized that the bottom line is
how best to serve the individual participants. Mr. Bicker stated the importance of
examining the exit provisions and he stated that he, Mr. Bergstrom and Ms. McCarrel are
all in agreement that the participants are significantly better off under the re-negotiation
situation than they would be re-bidding the contracts. He stated that some areas of
potential litigation involving contract termination dates and vested commissions could be
eliminated through the re-negotiation process. He pointed out that the original 1980
contract was drawn up by an actuary and included terms that were standard practice at
that point in time.

Mr. Carlson asked Ms. McCarrel, the SBI deferred compensation consultant from The
Wyatt Company, for her observations regarding the proposed contract terms. Ms.
McCarrel stated that she believes the proposed terms are a great improvement that give
participants more flexibility, i.e. more investment choices and the ability to move money
from one vendor to another without being penalized by the terms in the existing contracts.
Mr. Carlson asked whether there is anything included in the proposed terms that could
lead people to think that MSRS is moving in the direction of totally managing the program
again in-house, as it did prior to 1980. Mr. Bicker said he did not believe so. Mr. Carlson
stated that he believes that issue is important because it was due to MSRS's failure in



handling the marketing of the program that led to the hiring of private sector marketing
firms in 1980. He added that he believes it is important to acknowledge that the two
current marketing firms had increased participation by a substantial amount. Mr.
Bergstrom clarified that the letters of intent are with the two existing companies and he
noted that one of the goals during this process is to minimize any disruptions to the Plan.
He added, however, that he believes it will always be a part of his job responsibility to
review all administrative options concerning the Plan. Mr. Carlson voiced his concern that
the process could be guided by Mr. Bergstrom back towards internal management by
MSRS. In response to questions from Mr. Carlson, Mr. Bergstrom acknowledged the
difficulties MSRS had encountered when it had marketed the Plan internally prior to 1980.
Mr. Bergstrom stated that it would be the MSRS Board that would ultimately make any
decisions and he clarified that he is not suggesting that MSRS should market the Plan
internally. Mr. Carlson restated his discomfort on this issue. Mr. Bicker reminded
members that under current statute, the State Board of Investment is responsible for all
contracts related to the Deferred Compensation Plan and that even in future years any
contractual arrangements on marketing will have to be approved by the SBI as well as
MSRS.

Mr. Dayton stated that he believes the public record should clearly state the problems that
have existed with the program and he said that, in his opinion, an unregulated monopoly
had been created in 1980 that resulted in an inferior product at an inflated price. He noted
the substantial basis point fee reduction that had been negotiated and stated his belief that
those figures prove how excessive the marketing fees have been. He said that if the lower
fees had been in force during the last five years, the Plan could have saved over $8.5
million. He noted what he feels are punitive exit provisions in the existing contracts and
stated that while he believes some progress has been made, he feels that some
unacceptable terms still exist.

Ms. Growe said she had concerns with the portability terms and the five year length of the
contract and she asked Ms. McCarrel to give her perspective in these areas. Ms.
McCarrel summarized the proposed terms on portability and explained the trade-offs
associated with the interest rate levels credited to participants versus the length of the
contract. She pointed out that insurance companies are only willing to credit higher
interest rates if they have some assurance that they will be able to invest those assets for a
set period of time. In response to a question from Mr. Carlson, Ms. McCarrel said that
she is satisfied with the proposed portability terms and she noted an example of the
withdrawal restrictions a bank would impose on a five year certificate of deposit as similar
to the restrictions suggested by the proposed terms. In response to a question from Mr.
Dayton, Ms. McCarrel explained that the fixed annuity products offered by the two
insurance companies are structured very differently, i.e., Minnesota Mutual resets their
rates periodically while Great-West sets their rates in advance and they remain the same
for the entire certificate. She added that Minnesota Mutual's more flexible structure
allows them to be able to offer the higher annual portability of 20% on fixed options. Mr.
Dayton said he respected that answer but that the Board's responsibility lies with serving
the best interests of the participants. Mr. Bicker reiterated that increased portability



means lower credited interest rates for the participants and he discussed how insurance
commissioners are monitoring portability provisions very closely to assure that they do not
put an insurance company in jeopardy of losing a great deal of assets in a short period of
time, i.e., avoid a "run on the bank."

Ms. Growe reiterated her concerns that a five year termination date seems too long and
asked Ms. McCarrel for her opinion. Ms. McCarrel stated that the best terms with the
insurance companies were available with a five year time frame. She said that shorter time
frames would result in less attractive terms in other areas. Ms. Growe asked Ms.
McCarrel to comment on which process she believes would best serve the participants,
i.e., re-negotiation vs. re-bidding. Ms. McCarrel stated that she feels renegotiating the
contracts is a better option for the participants and she reviewed some of the problems
that were discussed earlier regarding re-bidding the contracts. Ms. Growe asked for Mr.
Bergstrom's opinion and he also stated that MSRS believes it is better to renegotiate the
contracts. In response to a question from Ms. Growe, Ms. McCarrel said that if the
proposed terms are approved there are still some restrictive termination provisions but she
noted that they are significantly less punitive than what exist in the current contract.

In response to questions from Mr. Carlson, Mr. Bicker reviewed the six investment
options available through the Supplemental Investment Fund (SIF) and added that if
legislation is approved this session, there would be an international investment option also.
He stated that MSRS had recently distributed a newsletter to all participants that
compared the performance of the State's investment options and the insurance companies
products.

In response to questions from Mr. Dayton, Mr. Bicker said that the 1 1/8% interest rate
included in the exit provisions is the standard minimum rate provided by insurance
companies and that it is possible for companies to allow rates that exceed that amount.
Mr. Bergstrom stated that he believes that all of the investment options for the Plan have
performed very competitively over the last three to seven years. Mr. Dayton restated his
concern that the portability and exit provisions in the proposed terms are still too
restrictive and punitive to participants. Mr. Bicker acknowledged Mr. Dayton's views and
restated his belief that if the program was being started now rather than in 1980 that more
favorable terms could be negotiated. He stated that he believes the proposed terms
accomplish nearly all of what staff set out to do and also provide an interim period to
resolve some potential legal problems. Mr. Dayton stated that in his opinion there are four
areas that remain unacceptable to him. He said he believes the portability on fixed options
should be 20% for both insurance companies; that the re-investment options for the fixed
products with Great-West should remain consistent with the way they were marketed
under the existing contract; that the exit provisions should be negotiated in such a way so
that in five years they are not as restrictive and punitive; and that any costs savings that
occur as a result of the negotiations should be identified and returned to the participants.
He said that he gives Mr. Bicker and Mr. Bergstrom credit for all that they had
accomplished so far, but he asked that they continue to negotiate to improve the terms



listed above. He added that he cannot support the terms as they stand now and he urged
the other Board members to withhold their support also.

In response to a question from Ms. Growe, Mr. Bicker clarified that if the Board approves
the letters of intent, their action would result in continuation of the negotiation process.
He stressed that nothing approved by the Board at this time is legally binding and that his
goal is to continue the negotiations and to have a contract ready for the Board's review at
the June 1994 meeting. Mr. McGrath stated that he served on MSRS's negotiating
committee and that he believes, along with the MSRS Board, that all of the goals
established by MSRS have been achieved. He said that he hoped the Board could come to
a favorable vote on this recommendation today. Mr. Dayton restated his concerns and
noted that he is disappointed that the MSRS Board will not take a more aggressive stance
to remedy the situation. He added that he does not want to be put in this same position in
June, if further concessions can not be achieved.

Mr. Humphrey stated that he believes progress has been made through tough negotiations
and that he expected those negotiations to continue. He said that while it is fine to
examine what has happened in the past on this issue, that it is time to make the appropriate
changes going forward that best serve the Plan participants. He noted that there is always
a potential for litigation and that he believes it is best to deal with that possibility by
reducing the risk of litigation to the greatest extent possible. He said that he believes the
negotiation process is helping in that area. He added that he believes the letters of intent
merely provide the framework within which the parties may continue their current
negotiations.

Ms. Growe referred to Mr. Dayton's earlier comments about the Plan offering inferior
products and she asked for Ms. McCarrel's comments. Ms. McCarrel stated that there are
some limitations in some of the existing products but that she feels all the products have
been very competitive. She noted that the most important criteria in determining with
whom to place a fixed annuity is the solvency of the insurance company and she stated
that both Great-West and Minnesota Mutual are both highly rated, secure companies and
that the safety of monies invested with those companies is not an issue.

Mr. Carlson said he believes the negotiations have come a long way and that in his opinion
the Board should be able to approve the re-negotiated contracts at the June 1994 meeting.
In response to a question from Mr. McGrath, Mr. Bicker explained that due to all the
legalities, it would be difficult to have a final contract for the Board to consider much
earlier than the June meeting. Mr. Carlson stated his willingness to call a special Board
meeting if the process could be expedited.

Mr. Carlson noted Representative Bob Johnson's presence and invited Rep. Johnson to
share his comments with the Board. Rep. Johnson stated that he appreciated the lengthy
discussion that had taken place regarding the Deferred Compensation Plan earlier in the
meeting and he stated that over the years he has had concerns about the lack of
accountability and MSRS's role in the management of the Plan. He said the purpose of his



remarks to the Board is to request that the process be slowed down since there is a
regulatory reform bill that has been introduced in the Legislature that, if it is signed into
law, would have an impact on the current negotiations for the Deferred Compensation
Plan. He said that he tried to raise some of the same issues regarding portability in the
past but had not encountered much cooperation. He thanked the Board for the
opportunity to express his comments.

Mr. Carlson asked Rep. Johnson what prevented the Legislature from exercising oversight
and addressing the concerns he expressed in his comments to the Board. Rep. Johnson
stated that previously there were no statutory requirements for MSRS to provide the
Legislative Commission on Pensions and Retirement with information. Mr. Carlson stated
that he wanted to make it very clear that it is the Legislature's responsibility to pass and
change laws. Mr. Johnson agreed but noted that previously, any type of reform measures
had been intensely lobbied against in the House of Representatives. In response to
questions from Mr. Carlson, Rep. Johnson acknowledged that Board members had not
been a party to that lobbying effort. Mr. Carlson asked if Rep. Johnson had any
association with any individuals wishing to bid on this contract. Rep. Johnson responded
by stating that there are companies who have sought his advice as to what would be
appropriate regarding this issue. Mr. Carlson asked Rep. Johnson if he had any
associations with any company that needed to be disclosed. Rep. Johnson stated that he
does not believe so, however, he noted that he is a participant in the 403(b) plan and that
he invests money in funds managed by Fidelity, Kemper, VALIC and the State's
Supplemental Investment Fund.

Mr. Humphrey stated that he believes the timing of the Board's action in June is in sinc
with the potential legislative action to which Rep. Johnson referred. Mr. McGrath agreed.
Mr. Carlson noted that Rep. Johnson has had several avenues available to him to address
his concemns including legislative committees and the legislative auditor and said he was
concerned about negative characterizations in light of the Board's limited jurisdiction in
this program. Mr. Carlson noted the complexity of the Deferred Compensation
negotiations and he expressed concern that future Board members could be less inclined to
take a risk to solve problems for fear that they may later be politically criticized for taking
that risk. Mr. Carlson asked for a motion. Mr. Humphrey moved that the Board
authorize the Executive Director to continue negotiations for the purpose of preparing a
final contract to meet or exceed the terms as outlined in the letters of intent. Mr. McGrath
seconded the motion. The motion passed. (After the meeting Mr. Dayton asked to be
recorded as a "no" vote.)

The meeting adjourned at 10:23 A M.
Respectfully submitted,

Howard J. Bicker
Executive Director

10



I T REPORT

ATTACHMENT A

FOURTH QUARTER

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Stock and Bond Manager Performance

Domestic Stocks
The domestic stock manager group (active and Qtr. 1Yr. 3Yr. 5Yr.
passive combined) trailed its target for the quarter
and year. Dom. Stocks 1.4% 10.9% 17.5% 14.1%
Wilshire 5000* 2.1 11.0 17.5 14.2
* Buy/hold index adjusted for liquor and tobacco
restrictions through 3/31/93 and AHP restriction
through 10/31/93.
International Stocks
The international stock manager group (active and Qtr. 1Yr. Since
passive combined) exceeded its target for the Incept.
quarter and year.
Int'l. Stocks 4.0% 34.3% 22.8%
EAFE 0.9 32.6 214
Domestic Bonds
The domestic bond manager group (active and Qtr. 1Yr. 3Yr. 5Yr.
semi-passive combined) exceeded its target for
the quarter and year. Bonds 0.1% 115% 12.0% 11.7%
Salomon BIG 0.0 9.9 11.1 113

Note: The above returns reflect the performance of the

Basic Funds' managers through 6/30/93 and of the
Combined Funds (Basic and Post) since 7/1/93.

Wilshire 5000: The Wilshire 5000 stock index reflects

the performance of all publicly traded stocks of
companies domiciled in the U.S.

EAFE: The Morgan Stanley Capital International index
of 18 stock markets in Europe, Australia and the Far East.

Salomon BIG: The Salomon Broad Investment Grade
bond index reflects the performance of all investment
grade (BAA or higher) bonds, U.S. treasury and agency
securities and mortgage obligations with maturities greater

than one year.

TAB A - PAGE iii REVISED



INVESTMENT REPORT FOURTH QUARTER 1993

STOCK AND BOND MANAGERS

Performance of Asset Pools

Domestic Stock Pool

Target: Wilshire 5000 Adjusted*

Expectation: If half of the pool is actively managed and
half is passively managed, the entire pool is expected to
exceed the target by +.20-.45% annuahzed, over time.

Value Added to Wiishire 5000 Adjusted*

Parcent

Annualized C3
Qtr. Yr. 3 Yrs. 5Yrs.
Stock Pool 14% 10.9% 175% 141%
Wilshire 5000* 2.1 11.0 17.5 14.2 -

*Buy/hold index adjusted for liquor and tobacco
restrictions through 3/31/93 and AHP restriction through ) ar i 3ave 5Yr
10/31/93.

Domestic Bond Pool

Target: Salomon Broad Investment Grade (BIG) Index

Expectation: If half of the pool is actively managed and Valus Added 1o Selomon BIG
Percent
4

half is managed semi-passively, the entire pool is expected
to exceed the target by +.20-.35% annualized, over time.

Annualized
Qtr. Yr. 3Yrs. 5Yrs.
Bond Pool 0.1% 11.5% 12.0% 11.7%
Salomon BIG 0.0 9.9 11.1 11.3

L
Qtr. Yr 3vr 5Yr.

International Stock Pool

Target: EAFE

Expectation: If half of the pool 1s managed actively, the
entire pool 1s expected to exceed the target by +.25-75%
annualized, over time.

Value Added to EAFE
Percent

Since
Qtr. Yr. 10/1/92
Int'l. Pool 4.0% 34.3% 22.8%
EAFE 0.9 32.6 214

| I

I
Qtr yr Since 10/1/92
'

TAB A - PAGE 14 - REVISED



Current Managers

Baring(1)
Brinson(1)

Marathon(2)
Rowe Price(2)
Scudder(2)
Templeton
State Street(3)

Current Aggregate

INTERNATIONAL STOCK MANAGERS

Since Inception

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/93
Quarter 1 Year

Actnal Bmk Actual Bmk Actual

13.6% 0.9% - - 27.2%
2.8 0.9 - - 10.4
-0.3%  -2.2%* - -- -0.3
7.5% -22% - - 7.5
49% 22% -- -- 49
1.6* -22% - -- 1.6
0.9 0.9 32.3 32,6 214
4.0 0.9 343 326 22.8

(1) Active country/passive stock. Retained April 1, 1993
(2) Fully active. Retained November 1, 1993

(3) Index. Retained October 1, 1992

* November-December only

TAB E - PAGE 87 - REVISED

Bmk

18.4%
18.4

-2.2
-2.2
-2.2
-2.2
214

214

% of
Pool

9.7%
8.6

7.9
8.5
8.5
8.2

48.6

100.0%

Mkt Value
(millions)

$184.0
161.8

149.5
161.2
160.7
155.4
918.7

$1,891.3



AGENDA
INVESTMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL
MEETING
Tuesday, June 7, 1994
2:00 P.M. - SBI Conference Room
Room 105, MEA Building - Saint Paul

. Approval of Minutes of March 1, 1994

. Report from the Executive Director (H. Bicker)

A. Quarterly Investment Review (December 31, 1993 - March 31, 1994)

B. Portfolio Statistics (March 31, 1994)

C. Administrative Report

Budget report

Travel report

Update on 1994 Legislative Session

SBI/TAC meeting schedule for remainder of calendar 1994

Issues to be referred to the Deferred Compensation Review Committee

LA WD

. Election of IAC Chair and Vice Chair

. Reports from the Investment Advisory Council

A. Stock and Bond Manager Committee (J. Eckmann)

Review of manager performance for period ending 3/31/94
Update on candidates for Manager Monitoring Program
Annual review of investment manager guidelines

Report from the Passive Manager Review Committee
Recommendation to use the Lehman Aggregate
Recommendation concerning the management structure of the
Assigned Risk Plan

IS ol a

B. Alternative Investment Committee (D. Veverka)
1. Results of annual review sessions
2. Commitment to a new real estate manager (CB Commercial)
3. Commitment to a new private equity manager (Hellman & Friedman)

. Report from the SBI Administrative Committee

Approval of Executive Director's Work Plan for FY95

Approval of Budget Plan for FY95

Approval of Continuing Fiduciary Education Plan

Approval of process for Executive Director's FY94 evaluation

Approval of preliminary FY96-97 biennial budget request

Authorization of contract amendment with State Street Bank

Approval of monitoring process for International Investing Guidelines
Consideration of re-negotiated contracts for the Deferred Compensation Plan

PNANA BN~

TAB

AW »



STATE BOARD OF INVESTMENT

Minutes
Investment Advisory Council
March 1, 1994

MEMBERS PRESENT: Gary Austin; Dave Bergstrom; Ken Gudorf: Laurie Fiori
Hacking; Keith Johnson; Peter Kiedrowski; Han Chin Liu;
Malcolm McDonald;, Gary Norstrem; Barbara Schnoor;
Mike Troutman and Debbie Veverka.

MEMBERS ABSENT: John Bohan; Jim Eckmann; John Gunyou; David Jeffery and
Jan Yeomans.

SBI STAFF: Howard Bicker; Beth Lehman; Jim Heidelberg; Dan
Egeland; Karen Vnuk; Debbie Griebenow; Charlene Olson
and Linda Nadeau.

OTHERS ATTENDING: Ann Posey, Richards & Tierney; John Wicklund, Teachers
Retirement Association; Christie Eller; Peter Sausen; Elaine
Voss; Ed Stuart; Mike Ousdigian; and Robert Whitaker.

Mr. McDonald called the meeting to order and the members agreed to change the order of
the agenda.

Alternative Investment Committee Report

Ms. Veverka referred members to Tab F of the meeting materials and compared the actual
alternative investment allocations to the targeted allocations for the Basic and the Post
Funds. She reported the results of an annual review with an existing private equity
manager, Churchill Capital. She stated that although four staff members of the firm had
departed recently, everything appeared in order and that the firm is in the process of hiring
replacements and that the meeting produced no major surprises. She reported that the
Committee is recommending commitments to three managers: TA Associates Realty, the
Coral Group (formerly IAI Venture Capital Group) and Summit Partners. She described
each fund, noting that the investment with Summit Partners is the first alternative
investment recommended for the Post Retirement Fund and that the other two investments
are being recommended for the Basic Funds. She stated that the Summit investment is
structured so that the Post Fund will receive a relatively quick turnaround on its capital.
In response to a question from Mr. McDonald, Ms. Veverka stated that the return on the
Summit investment is expected to be around 15-18%. Mr. Gudorf moved approval of all
three of the Committee's recommendations as stated in the Committee Report. Ms.
Schnoor seconded the motion. The motion passed.



Administrative Committee Report
Mr. Bicker referred members to Tab G of the meeting materials and noted that there were
two informational items on which to update members.

Mr. Bicker updated members on the police and fire pension fund activity. He explained
that in 1987 legislation was passed which allows salaried local police and fire funds to
merge with the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and that since that time,
32 of the 47 plans eligible to merge with PERA have done so. He stated that 3 plans are
in the process of merging and that 12 plans have elected not to merge as yet. He noted
that the Minneapolis Police and Minneapolis Fire plans are two plans of significant size
that have chosen not to merge as yet. Mr. Bicker explained that there has also been a
great deal of activity among the volunteer firefighter relief associations to utilize the
Supplemental Investment Fund (SIF) as an investment option for all or a portion of their
assets. He reported that there are currently 66 plans participating in the SIF and that staff
expects that number to continue to increase. He noted that Auditor Dayton is responsible
for auditing these firefighter plans and that he is examining their pension operations more
closely. Mr. Bicker noted the additional work flow for staff associated with the mergers
and additional participation in the Supplemental Investment Fund. In response to a
question from Mr. Norstrem, Mr. Bicker clarified that most of the funds that were listed as
funds withdrawing from the SIF were a result of consolidations with PERA, so in effect
they were just fund transfers from the SIF to the Basic and Post Funds.

Mr. Bicker reviewed the history of the Deferred Compensation Plan, noting the significant
growth the Plan has had since outside vendors were added in 1980. He said that at its
December 1993 meeting, the SBI urged Mr. Bicker and Mr. Bergstrom to proceed with
contract renegotiations with the insurance companies and the marketing organizations.
Mr. Bicker referred members to the meeting materials for a comparison of the current and
proposed contract terms. He explained each of the proposed terms and discussed the
impact and benefits of the proposed changes. He also stated that Minnesota Mutual has
agreed to increase the portability on their fixed products to 20% which was not reflected
in the meeting materials. Mr. Bicker discussed the impact of rebidding the contracts,
which, in his opinion, would adversely affect the individual participants. He stated that the
letters of intent are not legally binding but that they do provide a framework within which
a contract could be written if the Board chooses to proceed with the contract
renegotiations. Mr. Bicker said that he and Mr. Bergstrom will recommend to the Board
to continue the renegotiation process because they believe renegotiation to be in the best
interest of the participants. He added that the consultant from the Wyatt Company would
also be present at the Board meeting and that she concurs with the recommendation to
continue the renegotiation process.

In response to a question from Mr. Troutman, Mr. Bicker explained the different exit
provisions currently available through the two insurance companies and he said that exit
provisions and vested commissions are two important areas that are being addressed in the
renegotiation process. He also explained some areas of potential litigation that could be
avoided through renegotiation and he added that any legal costs would have to be paid by



the Plan. In response to questions from Mr. Gudorf, Mr. Bicker said these are no
penalities assessed due to the renegotiation process itself, the only direct cost associated
with the renegotiation process are the costs for the consultant which are billed back to the
insurance companies. In response to a question from Mr. Norstrem, Mr. Bicker confirmed
that, currently, the marketing contracts are with the insurance companies and he explained
that under the proposed terms the marketer's contracts would be with MSRS and
approved by the SBI. He stressed that this would help transition the process from a
marketing focus to that of informing, educating and servicing all participants in the Plan.
Mr. Bergstrom added that the compensation will be equal for all products, thus eliminating
any incentive to sell one product over another. In response to a question from Mr.
Norstrem, Mr. Bergstrom stated that under the letters of intent, the existing contracts
between the marketing organizations and the insurance companies will be severed and that
both the marketing companies and the insurance companies will have contracts directly
with MSRS.

In response to a question from Mr. Liu, Mr. Bergstrom stated under the proposed
compensation formula, the compensation paid to the marketing firms would decrease over
time from 33 basis points down to 28 basis points and that these figures are in line with
what MSRS's consultant recommended and with the national average for similar plans. In
response to a question from Mr. McDonald, Mr. Bicker confirmed that this is not an
action item for the IAC and that he would make his report directly to the Board.

Approval of the Minutes
Mr. Johnson moved to accept the minutes of the December 14, 1993 meeting. Mr.
McDonald seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Executive Director's Report

Mr. Bicker referred members to Tab A of the meeting materials and reported that the
Combined Funds, Basic Funds and Post Fund had all outperformed their respective return
objectives for the period. In response to a question from Mr. Gudorf, Mr. Bicker
reminded members that the Post Fund return figure is only from 7/1/93 forward which is
the date when the asset allocation transition was completed. He stated that the Basic
Funds are now over $10 billion in size and that the Basics' asset mix is on target with its
long-term policy. He said that the Basic Funds had underperformed for the quarter
(Basics 1.2% vs. Composite 1.6%) but had outperformed for the year (Basics 12.2% vs.
Composite 12.0%), and five year period (Basics 12.8% vs. Composite 12.1%). Mr.
Bicker reported that the Post Retirement Fund was just under $9 billion as of December
31, 1993. He stated that the Post Fund's allocation to international stocks was fully
funded during the quarter. He reported that the total fund has matched its composite
index (1.4%) for the quarter and exceeded it since 7/1/93 (Post Fund 5.0% vs. Composite
4.6%).

Mr. Bicker briefly reviewed the stock manager performance and said that further
discussion would follow during the Stock and Bond Committee Report. He distributed a
handout (see Attachment A) and stated that it included a revised performance figure for



the international stock component since inception. He stated that the international
component had actually outperformed its target since inception (Int'l. Stocks 22.8% vs.
EAFE 21.4%) and not underperformed as stated in the meeting materials. Mr. Bicker
stated that the domestic bond manager group had outperformed for both the quarter
(Domestic Bonds 0.1% vs. Salomon BIG 0.0%) and year (Domestic 11.5% vs. Salomon
BIG 9.9%). Mr. Bicker reported that the Assigned Risk Plan (ARP) had underperformed
its composite index for the quarter (ARP 1.1% vs. Composite 1.3%) but outperformed it
for the year (ARP 7.1% vs. Composite 6.4%). Mr. Bicker stated that staff has some
concerns regarding the equity portion of the ARP which would also be discussed in more
detail during the Stock and Bond Manager Committee Report. He said that as of
December 31, 1993 the SBI was responsible for $22.9 billion in assets.

Executive Director's Administrative Report

Mr. Bicker referred members to Tab C of the meeting materials for updates on the budget
and travel. He said his recommendation concerning the review of vendors for the
retirement plans administered by the State University and Community College Systems
had been revised from what was included in the meeting materials. He said that staff is
recommending a one year extension to the contract with the current vendors in order for
the rebidding of the contracts to coincide with the merger of the State University System,
Community College System and Technical Colleges Boards which will take place on July
1, 1995. Mr. Bergstrom moved approval of the recommendation, as stated by Mr. Bicker.
Mr. Kiedrowski seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Asset Allocation Committee Report

Due to the absence of several members of the Asset Allocation Committee, Mr. Bicker
gave the Committee report. Mr. Bicker providled members with some background
information on the management structure of the Assigned Risk Plan (ARP) and he stated
that currently the asset allocation of the Plan is 80% bonds and 20% stocks. He said that
the ARP has a single manager, Voyageur Asset Management, who actively manages both
the stock and bond segments of the ARP. He explained that staff originally believed
Voyageur's investment approach would be fairly representative of the broad market, but
that experience over the last 2.5 years had shown otherwise which resulted in the Plan
being exposed to inappropriate levels of active risk. Mr. Bicker said that staff had
recommended that the stock segment of the ARP be managed by SBI staff as part of an
internally managed index pool that is designed to track the S&P 500. He reported that the
Committee would like additional time to consider the proposal before making a
recommendation to the SBI/IAC. He added that the Committee is not opposed to the
passive management approach suggested by staff, but that they believe other management
structures may be applicable as well. He said that Voyageur supports the idea of indexing
the equity segment. He noted that the Assigned Risk Plan's equities cannot be merged
with other equity portfolios since the ARP is a taxable entity while all other equities
invested by the SBI are in tax-exempt funds. In response to a question from Mr.
Troutman, Mr. Bicker stated that the ARP's assets are not large enough to track an
extended index such as the Wilshire 5000 so staff felt that the S&P 500 was the most
appropriate index to track.



Mr. Bicker reported that the Committee had also approved and is recommended the
adoption of the position paper for the Post Retirement Fund. He noted that it summarizes
the history of the Post Fund, reviews the impact of the old and new benefit increase
formulas and discusses the rationale for the old and new asset allocation policies for the
Fund. Ms. Veverka stated that she believes the paper should reflect the impact that a
period of poor returns could have on the funded status of the plan. Mr. Bicker clarified
that the investment based component of the benefit increase will not be paid until any
unfunded liabilities due to any inflation based increases that had already been granted. Ms.
Veverka amended the Committee's recommendation to include the information she
suggested when the paper is updated in the future. Mr. McDonald then moved approval
of the amended recommendation. Ms. Veverka seconded the motion. The motion passed.

Stock and Bond Manager Committee Report

Mr. Troutman referred members to Tab E of the meeting materials and discussed staff and
the Committee's concerns with the level of negative tracking error being experienced by
the SBI's passive equity manager, Wilshire Asset Management. He stated that staff had
suggested to the Committee that the SBI conduct a passive manager search and consider
the Russell 3000 as a potential replacement for the Wilshire 5000 as the SBI's asset class
target for domestic stocks. He explained the differences in the two indexes and noted that
two additional candidates, Bankers Trust and Wells Fargo would be included in the
passive manager search. He reported that the Committee's recommendation is that the
SBI establish a Passive Manager Review Committee to consider which combination of
passive manager and asset class target can be implemented most efficiently and effectively.
In response to a question from Ms. Veverka, Mr. Troutman stated that the manager
candidates would be evaluated on their capability to manage the passive portfolio as a
completion fund for the total equity program. In response to questions from Mr. Gudorf,
Mr. Bicker said that the size of the index fund currently is $5 billion and that the Review
Committee will examine the capability of managers to handle accounts of this size given
their existing staff and history of staff tumover. He added that staff believe it may be
more efficient to continue having only one passive manager despite the large size of the
portfolio. Mr. Troutman agreed and stated his belief that the evaluation criteria must
include evaluation of a firm's capabilities to manage a large portfolio. In response to
questions from Mr. Gudorf, Mr. Troutman and Mr. Bicker stated that both staff and
Richards & Tierney are in the process of completing some analysis to explain Wilshire's
recent underperformance more completely. In response to a question from Ms. Hacking,
Mr. Bicker stated that he felt + 30-50 basis points would be an acceptable tracking error
range. He noted that some of the tracking error should occasionally be on the positive
side and he added that Wilshire's tracking error has been consistently negative. Mr.
Troutman noted that over a 10 year time period it would be reasonable to expect the
tracking error to be + 5-10 basis points. In response to an observation by Ms. Veverka,
Mr. Bicker agreed that some of Wilshire's underperformance could have been the result of
using Wilshire as a transition manager to fund various new managers. However, he added
that staff believes it is important to conduct a thorough review given the size of the assets
under management. In response to questions from Ms. Veverka and Mr. McDonald, Mr.



Bicker explained that the new manager candidates will be asked to create and evaluate
paper portfolios using the same historical benchmarks against which Wilshire was
measured. In conclusion, Mr. Troutman stated that the Review Committee will make its
report back to the Stock and Bond Committee in time for a recommendation to be made
at the June 1994 Board/IAC meetings. Mr. McDonald asked Mr. Troutman to present the
remainder of the Committee's report before taking action on the above recommendation.

Mr. Troutman reported that the Committee had discussed a proposal from staff to add a
semi-passive management component to the domestic stock program. He stated that the
Committee expects to make a recommendation on the proposal after further analysis and
after addressing the current passive management issues discussed above. In response to a
question from Mr. McDonald, Mr. Troutman stated that the Committee will focus on
what types of semi-passive managers are available and what the risk/rewards of this
strategy might be and its impact on the overall profile of the domestic equity program.
Mr. Bicker added that staff is collecting additional information to insure that there are
enough experienced and qualified firms to potentially handle semi-passive portfolios of
$500-750 million for the SBI.

Mr. Troutman then asked if he could express his comments on a related issue. He stated
that the volatility of a manager's return is usually a focus at the IAC/SBI meetings each
quarter and he restated his belief that the SBI sometimes moves too quickly to terminate
managers who have underperformed over short time periods. He stated that a former
manager for the SBI who was terminated due to a lagging performance over a relatively
short time period, Rosenberg Institutional, had recently performed very well, adding over
400 basis points to their benchmark for 1993. He observed that it will require a number of
years to know whether the SBI's decision to terminate Rosenberg was good or bad. He
stressed the importance of evaluating a manager's long-term capabilities and rather than
focusing on difficult periods of poor short-term performance. Mr. Johnson agreed.

Mr. Troutman moved approval of the Committee's recommendation to establish a Passive
Manager Review Committee to evaluate the manager candidates as well as the asset class
target for the domestic equity program, as stated in the Committee Report. Mr.
Bergstrom seconded the motion. The motion passed.

The meeting adjourned at 3:25 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Py

Howard J. Bicker
Executive Director



ATTACHMENT A

INVESTMENT REPORT FOURTH QUARTER
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Stock and Bond Manager Performance
Domestic Stocks
The domestic stock manager group (active and Qtr. 1Yr. 3Yr. SYr.
passive combined) trailed its target for the quarter
and year. Dom. Stocks 14% 109% 175% 14.1%
Wilshire 5000* 2.1 11.0 17.5 14.2
* Buy/hold index adjusted for liquor and tobacco
restrictions through 3/31/93 and AHP restriction
through 10/31/93.
International Stocks
The international stock manager group (active and Qtr. 1Yr. Since
passive combined) exceeded its target for the Incept.
quarter and year.
Int'l. Stocks 4.0% 3M43% 22.8%
EAFE 0.9 32,6 214
Domestic Bonds
The domestic bond manager group (active and Qtr. 1¥r, 3Yr. 5Yr.
semi-passive combined) exceeded its target for
the quarter and year. Bonds 0.1% 11.5% 12.0% 11.7%
Salomon BIG 0.0 99 11.1 113

Note: The above returns reflect the performance of the

Basic Funds' managers through 6/30/93 and of the
Combined Funds (Basic and Post) since 7/1/93.

Wilshire 5000: The Wilshire 5000 stock index reflects

the performance of all publicly traded stocks of
companies domiciled in the U.S.

EAFE: The Morgan Stanley Capital International index
of 18 stock markets in Europe, Australia and the Far East.

Salomon BIG: The Salomon Broad Investment Grade
bond index reflects the performance of all investment
grade (BAA or higher) bonds, U.S. treasury and agency
securities and mortgage obligations with maturities greater

than one year.

TAB A - PAGE iii REVISED



INVESTMENT REPORT

FOURTH QUARTER 1993

STOCK AND BOND MANAGERS

Performance of Asset Pools

Domestic Stock Pool

Target: Wilshire 5000 Adjusted*

Expectation: If half of the pool is actively managed and
half is passively managed, the entire pool is expected to
exceed the target by +.20-.45% annualized, over time.

Annualized
Qtr. Yr. 3Yrs. 5 Yrs.
Stock Pool 14% 10.9% 17.5% 14.1%

Wilshire 5000* 2.1 11.0 17.5 14.2

*Buy/hold index adjusted for liquor and tobacco

Valua Added to Wishire 5000 Adjusted*

restrictions through 3/31/93 and AHP restriction through C— v ™ P
10/31/93.
Domestic Bond Pool
Target: Salomon Broad Investment Grade (BIG) Index
Expectation: If half of the pool is actively managed and Value Added 1o Salomon BiG
half is managed semi-passively, the entire pool is expected o Foroent
to exceed the target by +.20-.35% annualized, over time.
Annualized ]
Qtr. Yr. 3Yrs. 5 Yrs. 2 f ------------------------
Bond Pool 01% 11.5% 12.0% 11.7%
Salomon BIG 060 99 11.1 113 : - _
0
[
e
International Stock Pool
Target: EAFE
Expectation: If half of the pool is managed actively, the Value Added to EAFE
entire pool is expected to exceed the target by +.25-.75% 4 Dorcent

annualized, over time.

Since
Qtr. Yr. 10/1/92
Int'l. Pool 40% 343% 22.8%
EAFE 0.9 32.6 21.4

)
Qtr. Ye. Since 10/1/02

TAB A - PAGE 14 - REVISED



Current Managers

Baring(1)
Brinson(1)

Marathon(2)
Rowe Price(2)
Scudder(2)
Templeton
State Street(3)

Current Aggregate

INTERNATIONAL STOCK MANAGERS

PERIOD ENDING 12/31/93

Quarter 1 Year Since Inception

Actual Bmk Actual Bmk Actual Bmk

13.6% 0.9% - - 2712% 18.4%
2.8 0.9 -- -- 104 18.4
-0.3* 22+ -- -- -0.3 -22
7.5% -2.2* -~ - 75 -2.2
49* -22* - - 49 -2.2
1.6* -2.2* -- - 1.6 -2.2
0.9 09 323 32.6 214 214
4.0 0.9 34.3 32,6 22.8 214

(1) Active country/passive stock. Retained April 1, 1993
(2) Fully active. Retained November 1, 1993

(3) Index. Retained October 1, 1992

* November-December only

TAB E - PAGE 87 - REVISED

% of
Pool

9.7%
8.6

7.9
8.5
8.5
8.2

48.6

100.0%

Mkt Value
(millions)

$184.0
161.8

149.5
161.2
160.7
155.4
918.7

$1,891.3



Tab A

N
Frs
L
P
-
,
|
|
,
P
i
. .
| - -
. - Aoy . |
A ~ * .
. N - <3 .
s ECER T ~ N
” ¥ - s - ’
. a - P SN P . . -
' ) . B S o T B . .
o LSO N Lo S AR o Y e o ¢
N 3. C Tty g d prwwurp M afe s bl -
B I oy SR R RS T TE s B o gt Bt Nl oy eme Bl R




RETURN OBJECTIVES
Period Ending 3/31/94

COMBINED FUNDS: $18.4 Billion Return Compared to Objective
Provide Real Return (10 yr.) 12.7% (1) 8.9 percentage points
above target

Provide returns that are 3-5 percentage points
greater than inflation over moving 10 year periods.

Exceed Median Fund (5 yr.) 11.2% (1) 0.2 percentage points
above target
Outperform the median fund from a universe of Rank: 44th percentile (2)

public and corporate funds with a balanced asset
mix over moving 5 year periods.

Exceed Composite Index (5 yr.) 11.2% (1) 0.6 percentage points
above target

Outperform a composite market index weighted in a

manner that reflects the actual asset mix of the

Combined Funds over moving $ year periods.

BASIC RETIREMENT FUNDS: $9.7 Billion Return Compared to Objective
Exceed Composite Index (5 Yr.) 11.2% 0.5 percentage points
above target

Outperform a composite index weighted in a
manner that reflects the long-term asset
allocation of the Basic Funds over moving 5

year periods.
POST RETIREMENT FUND: $8.7 Billion Return Compared to Objective
Exceed Composite Index 2.2% (3) 0.3 percentage points

above target (3)
Outperform a composite index weighted in a
manner that reflects the long-term asset
allocation of the Post Fund over moving 5
year periods.

(1) Reflects performance of Basic Funds only through 6/30/93, Combined Funds thereafter.
(2) The SBI's stated performance objective is to rank in the top half (above 50th percentile)

of the comparative universe. The SBI will strive to achieve performance which ranks in
the top third (above 33rd percentile).

(3) Since asset allocation transition was completed, 7/1/93,



INVESTMENT REPORT FIRST QUARTER 1994
ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS
MSRS, TRA, PERA General Plans

June 30, 1993

Active Retired Total

(Basics) (Post) (Basics & Post)
Liability Measures
1. Current and Future Benefit Obligation $15.8 billion $6.4 billion $22.2 billion
2. Accrued Liabilities 11.2 6.4 17.6
Asset Measures
3. Current and Future Actuarial Value ~ $15.2 billion $6.4 billion $21.6 billion
4. Current Actuarial Value 7.9 6.4 14.3
Funding Ratios
Future Obligations vs. 96% 100% 97%
Future Assets (3 + 1)
Accrued Liabilities vs. 71% 100% 81%*

Current Actuarial Value (4 + 2)

* Ratio most frequently used by the Legislature and Retirement Systems.

The funding ratio required by Governmental Standard Accounting Board Statement No. § compares Cost Value of
assets to the Current Benefit Obligation. This calculation provides funded ratios of 78% for the Basics, 100% for the

Post and 86% for the Total, respectively.

Notes:

adb i

value for Basics.

Actuarial Assumptions:
Salary Growth: 6.5%
Interest//Discount Rate: 8.5% Basics, 5.0% Post
Full Funding Target Date: 2020

Present value of projected benefits that will be due to all current participants.

Liabilities attributed to past service calculated using entry age normal cost method.

Present value of future statutory contributions plus current actuarial value.

Same as required reserves for Post. Cost plus one-third of the difference between cost and market



i
PRI S
ol
P

g
g

e A5 AR
L

x

g
3

bdvbid ddodod Lt L4 4 0 1AL L3 1) L L8 11

RN AR JV 2V Y Y R R RP

g

- - . 5. .
< et ) N
w77 N )
s " ot ' R
' L o S
LN R .
R B PR R
. : e 3 -
. . A s
N - ‘ dg” - ~
L™ N A sy

st

N &

a5 s
. ‘ ¥
ST

- AR Asaste

. B
. . - :
. e . - T
- “ h -
KA Yo B
b ¥

_3 ¥r.
10.4%
96

5

bhowssudBiis

~ [P—




INVESTMENT REPORT

FIRST QUARTER 1994

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Post Retirement Fund

Asset Growth

The market value of the Post Fund decreased 0.3% during
the first quarter of 1994. The decrease resulted from
negative investment returns.

10.0

Asset Growth

During First Quarter 1994
(Millions)
Beginning Value $8,766
Net Contributions 211
Investment Return -235
Ending Value $8,742
Asset Mix

80 f
sof

40 |

20

B bt bbb 4l i)t s 11 iil

S EP L, L LSS ISP

The asset mix is in line with policy targets. Domestic
bonds will exceed its target until alternative assets

. Dom. Stocks
increase. 50.1%

Policy Actual Actual

Asset Mix Market Value L Cash

Mix 3/31/94 (Millions) Stocks

Domestic Stocks 50.0% 50.1% $4,377 1o.
Int'l. Stocks 10.0 10.6 925
Domestic Bonds 320 36.8 3,221
Alternative Assets 5.0 0.0* 2 Dom. Bonds
Unallocated Cash 3.0 2.5 217

100.0% 100.0%  $8,742
* less than 0.1%
Fund Performance
The Post Fund matched its composite market index for the
quarter and exceeded the composite since 7/1/93.

Percent
Qtr. Since 7/1/93*
Post Fund -2.6% 22% 0 2p-mmmmmms s s - RS T
Composite -2.6 o b
' Post Fund
C1Composite
* Date asset allocation transition to 50% domestic
common stocks was completed. S [




RSO I RN
Folsgogain ., |~
W2yt

N BN
B
RS

*’*g‘fﬁgﬁ&ud Bond Manager Perforgianes’ - -
{5 I [N, ¢ ’:{:é’

TXa
o
g PA

NN

5Yr.

T oo
w“%ﬁf‘! g

Ha Siome

PRt

2
48

11.6%
11.8

Fui o

R
Aosd
Vs

X
LY

i

i o b
% T,
%“f o

LT ’?‘ 1Y Since
E I Incept.*
spenow Ltk ‘5"

199% -
3 225 203

w k.
o
- 4
e
§

B
B Ay
r»,r:%\:;

AT A
Y

)‘ :’ k3 N
TP o

i R s
o Y B W Can T S
L R v N s PR

Reg sy

[ an
Aoy
e

=
T, Ll & N
A AT LR »

5 3yr. s5Yr.

»
2
<4

!
.
b
N
g
&

ey

[s
3

9.9% 10.8%
26 9.1 10.5

s
s ey
iy

g

>
3

L
@fﬂ' &
]
o

i,
¥

L

- »'3-
KGR |
e
A
e

B
<
2 T

S

s

5
%,
t
#
te
Y
N
Yo
£
.

b

LN
ot
rar
=

o
g

[
e

S0,

[

"
P

R K

v’ 2 -

i e

ol

1
st o
3
[
o

.
-

[N
4
i




FIRST QUARTER 199%4

INVESTMENT REPORT

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Assigned Risk Plan

Investment Objective

The Assigned Risk Plan has two investment objectives: to
minimize the mismatch between assets and liabilities and
to provide sufficient liquidity for the payment of on-going
claims and operating expenses.

Asset Mix

The Assigned Risk Plan is invested in a balanced portfolio
of common stocks and bonds. The actual asset mix will
fluctuate in response to changes in the Plan's liability
stream.

Investment Management

The entire fund is managed externally by Voyageur Asset
Management. The portfolio was transferred from the
Department of Commerce to the SBI on May 1, 1991.

Performance Benchmarks

A custom benchmark has been established for the fixed
income portfolio. It reflects the duration of the liability
stream and the long-term sector allocation of Voyageur
Asset Management. The equity benchmark is a custom
benchmark consisting of A or greater rated S&P 500
stocks less utilities. The total fund benchmark is a
combination of the fixed income and equity benchmarks,
weighted according to the asset allocation target.

Market Value
On March 31, 1994 the market value of the Assigned Risk
Plan was $410 million.

3/31/94 3/31/94
Target Actual
Stocks 20.0% 17.8%
Bonds 80.0 78.4
Unallocated Cash 0.0 3.8
Total 100.0% 100.0%
Percent
10 [
i B
2 - paaan
_4 : 1 1
Qtr. Year
Period Ending 3/31/94
Since
Qtr. Yr. 7/1/91
Total Fund 17%  21%  8.5%
Composite Index 2.0 1.6 8.0
Equity Segment -3.9 5.1 6.5
Benchmark 4.5 -4.1 6.8
Bond Segment -1.3 34 9.0
Benchmark -1.3 29 8.2

iv

Since 7/91



T
Oy

Ay

L B
3¢ A
; o Fei U S
SR . i

SR R y. . S
g N

Gt

Py
g T

“ P2k “
AR

B .yt " .

w ST, wd L% i 1 - wy ¥ o
4 S TR k59 T RS o

. i E e B ELT o T LR LIRS N

o :.\(ntp B ol . . RN ak N o S

g AT, S 3 [ R o
ety B o [ARSRTRN: %

ol ¥ > ! .

A

“
PR

P

~ -

T
ONE N

v Pt

?.
b S
‘e ~EG, s *
* TR A, :
PR 3 - .
S A% SEE . .
e “‘F:ii - [
s ISE A g
) Ayt .o
I R .-
. N0t £
SRS N
. L ¥
' s 3ot e N .
t H LAY o .o
NS LR T
T - . !E»
[ [
. -
B +457
RS N &2 -
" ‘;;, N 4
AT 5
Aadad 3
Y ' .
v Ry L
O vzt
N A -
Er i C s
e g o
5 P . :\‘
L% i
A . ,
[ 5
PO S
N 4
’; < el 5
P et Pl
Ik f}e} w2 - »
. FA :
il i . :
Kibe g habns
CEEFLSE TR .
N L}
[ 2 3 N <
Nt L ¥ :
R ¥
. AR a - L
. A B
i : ) !
© emvem
. N 0 R
Pt 4
,’ﬁﬂ»c

e



MINNESOTA STATE BOARD
OF INVESTMENT

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
First Quarter 1994

(January 1, 1994 — March 31, 1994)

Table of Contents
Page

Capital Market Indices 2
Financial Markets Review 3
Combined Funds 5
Basic Retirement Funds 8
Post Retirement Fund 11
Stock and Bond Manager Pools 14
Alternative Asset Pools 15
Assigned Risk Plan 16
Supplemental Investment Fund 17

Fund Description

Income Share Account

Growth Share Account

Common Stock Index Account

Bond Market Account

Money Market Account

Fixed Return Account
Permanent School Fund 24
State Cash Accounts 25




INVESTMENT REPORT FIRST QUARTER 1994

VARIOUS CAPITAL MARKET INDICES

Period Ending 3/31/94

Qtr. Yr. 3Yr. SYr. 10Yr.

Domestic Equity
Wilshire 5000 -3.7% 28% 104% 12.1% 14.3%
Dow Jones Industrials -2.5 8.8 10.9 13.4 16.3
S&P 500 -3.8 1.5 9.1 12.1 14.7
Russell 2000 2.7 11.0 15.6 11.7 11.4

Domestic Fixed Income

Salomon BIG* 2.8 2.6 9.1 10.5 11.5

Shearson Gov't./Corp. -3.1 2.8 9.4 10.5 114

90 Day U.S. Treasury Bills 0.8 3.1 3.9 5.5 6.6
International

EAFE** 3.5 22.5 7.9 2.7 16.3

Salomon Non U.S. Gov't. Bond 1.9 10.8 14.3 11.1 14.2

Inflation Measure

Consumer Price Index*** 1.0 2.6 3.0 3.8 3.7

* Salomon Broad Investment Grade bond index
** Morgan Stanley Capital International index of Europe, Australia and the Far East (EAFE)
*** Consumer Price Index (CPI) for all urban consumers, also known as CPI-U.



FIRST QUARTER 1994

INVESTMENT REPORT

FINANCIAL MARKETS REVIEW

DOMESTIC STOCKS

For the quarter, the stock market generated negative
returns. The decline was very broad producing negative
returns in almost every segment of the market. As shown
below, all the Wilshire Style Indexes incurred negative
returns similar to the broad market. From a sector
perspective, only the technology area produced a positive
return. In general, the stock market posted negative
returns due to rising interest rates in the bond market. The
bond market reacted negatively to reports that the
economy was growing faster than expectations which
caused the market to fear that inflation will increase
significantly.

The Wilshire 5000 provided a -3.8% return for the
quarter. Performance among the different Wilshire Style
Indexes for the quarter are shown below:

DOMESTIC BONDS

Bond returns were poor as interest rates rose. As the
economy strengthened, inflation fears rose and caused an
increase in interest rates, including the Federal funds rate.
Two year rates increased 0.95% while long rates
increased 0.75%. Mortgage securities had a shorter
duration and therefore outperformed corporate and
Treasury securities.

Overall, the Salomon Brothers Broad Investment Grade
(BIG) Index decreased 2.8% for the quarter. The Salomon
BIG sector returns for the quarter were:

Treasury/Agency -3.1%
Corporates -3.2
Mortgages -2.1

The Salomon BIG increased 2.6% for the latest year.

Large Value -4.9%
Small Value -39
Large Growth -3.8
Small Growth -32

The Wilshire 5000 increased 2.8% during the latest year.

7000

8000

5000

4000

3000

2000

1000

PERFORMANCE OF CAPITAL MARKETS

Cumulative Returns

L AL

T T

T

***************ir

[+ X T o s s e e e e e e e T I O I I Y R B B N
) © A Y N 5 o
& & & & & & & & & & &

(% Consumer Price index ® Cash Equivalents AU.S Bonds —U.S. Stocks ssint} Stocksb

Indices used are: Morgan Stanley's Index of Europe, Australia and the Far East (EAFE); Wilshire 5000 Index; Salomon
Broad Investment Grade (BIG) Bond Index; 91 Day Treasury Bills; and the Consumer Price Index.



INVESTMENT REPORT

FIRST QUARTER 1994

FINANCIAL MARKETS REVIEW

INTERNATIONAL STOCKS

In aggregate, the international stock markets (as measured
by the EAFE index) provided a return of 3.5% for the
quarter. As shown below, performance varied widely
among the major markets.

Japan 16.3%
United Kingdom -1.3
Germany -1.2
France -2.5

The EAFE index increased by 22.5% during the latest
year. The index is compiled by Morgan Stanley Capital
International. It is an index of 20 markets located in
Europe, Australia and the Far East (EAFE). The major
markets listed above comprise about 75% of the value of
international markets.

REAL ESTATE

Many real estate portfolios have experienced significant
writedowns over the last two years, reflecting the weak
real estate markets. Income returns from properties valued
at current market prices are becoming more competitive
with those from other asset classes. Longer term, higher
property income yields, low interest rates and a significant
decline in construction activity are favorable
developments for the real estate market.

PRIVATE EQUITY

According to the Venmture Capital Journal, "venture
capitalists took 165 companies public in 1993, breaking
the record of 157 companies set the prior year. The capital
raised in the 1993 initial public offering (IPO) market by
venture-backed companies broke a record as well. A total
of $4.86 billion was raised, compared with $4.57 billion
the previous year."

RESOURCE FUNDS

Currently, spot prices of West Texas Intermediate oil are
$18.05 per barrel. This compares to $19.35 per barrel a
year ago.



FIRST QUARTER 19%4

INVESTMENT REPORT

COMBINED FUNDS

The "Combined Funds" represent the assets of both the
Basic and Post Retirement Funds. While the Combined
Funds do not exist under statute, the Board finds it
instructive to review asset mix and performance of all
defined benefit pension assets under its control. This more
closely parallels the structure of other public and
corporate pension plan assets and therefore allows for
more meaningful comparison with other pension fund
investors.

The comparison universe used by the SBI is the Master
Trust portion of the Trust Universe Comparison Service
(TUCS). This universe contains information on more than
200 public and corporate pension and trust funds with a
balanced asset mix.

Asset Mix Compared to Other Pension Funds

On March 31, 1994, the actual asset mix of the Combined
Funds was:

Comparisons of the Combined Funds' asset mix to the
median allocation to stocks, bond and other assets of the
public and corporate funds in TUCS on March 31, 1994

$ Millions % are shown below:
Domestic Stocks $9,127 49.5%
International Stocks 1,922 104
Bonds 5,993 32.5
Alternative Assets 1,005 5.5
Unallocated Cash 393 2.1
Total $18,440 100.0%
Percent
100
Bo ............................

M Combined Funds §
CJTUCS Median

Stocks* Bonds*

Stocks* Bonds* Cash Other
Combined Funds 59.9% 32.5% 2.1% 55%
Median Allocation in TUCS 54.7 309 6.5 0.6

* Both domestic and international.



INVESTMENT REPORT

FIRST QUARTER 1994

COMBINED FUNDS
Performance Compared to Other Pension Funds

While the SBI is naturally concerned with how its returns
compare to other pension investors, universe comparison
data should be used with great care. There are several
reasons why such comparisons will provide an "apples to
oranges" look at performance:

— Differing Treatment of Fees. All SBI returns in this
report are shown gfter all management fees while
TUCS data is reported before fees. If the SBI
reported returns before fees, its returns and rankings
would be higher than those shown in this report.

— Differing Allocations. Asset allocation will have a

In addition, it appears that many funds do not
include alternative asset holdings in their reports to
TUCS. This further distorts comparisons among
funds.

Differing Goals/Liabilities. Each pension fund
structures its portfolio to meet its own liabilities and
risk tolerance. This will result in different choices on
asset mix. Since asset mix will largely determine
investment results, a universe ranking is not relevant
to a discussion of how well a plan sponsor is meeting
its long-term liabilities.

dominant effect on return. The allocation to stocks
among the funds in TUCS typically ranges from 20-
90%, a very wide range for meaningful comparison.

With these considerations in mind, the performance of
the Combined Funds compared to other public and
corporate pension funds in TUCS are shown below:

Percent
8

TUCS Median**

Period Ending 3/31/94
Annualized
Qtr. Yr. 3Yr 5Yr.
Combined Funds Return* -2.3 49 10.3 11.2

TUCS Median Fund Return** -2.7% 5.3% 10.0% 11.0%
Percentile Rank in TUCS 32nd 53rd 44th 44th

* After fees. Includes Basic Funds only through 6/30/93, Basic and Post thereafter.
** Before fees

The SBI's stated performance objective is that the period. The SBI will strive to achieve performance which
Combined Funds will rank in the top half of the universe ranks in the top third (above the 33rd percentile).

(above the 50th percentile) over the most recent five year



FIRST QUARTER 1994 INVESTMENT REPORT

COMBINED FUNDS
Performance Compared to Composite Index
The Combined Funds' performance is evaluated relative to in a manner that reflects the asset allocation of the
a composite of market indices. The composite is weighted Combined Funds:
Combined
Index
Market Weights
Index 1/1/94
Domestic Stocks Wilshire 5000 50.0%
Int'l. Stocks EAFE 10.0
Domestic Bonds Salomon BIG 32.7*
Alternative Assets Wilshire Real Estate 2.4+
Venture Capital Funds 24*
Resource Funds 0.6*
Unallocated Cash 91 Day T-Bills 1.9
100.0%

* Alternative asset and bond weights are reset in the composite each quarter to reflect the amount of
unfunded commitments in alternative asset classes.

W Combined Funds**
CIComposite***

Period Ending 3/31/94
Annualized
Qtr. Yr. 3Yr. 5Yr.
Combined Funds** -2.3% 4.9% 10.3% 11.2%
Composite Index*** -2.3 4.9 9.5 10.6

**Includes performance of Basic Funds through 6/30/93, Basic and Post Funds thereafter.

*+* Adjusted to reflect the SBI's restrictions on liquor and tobacco stocks through 3/3 1/93 and AHP restriction through
10/31/93.



FIRST QUARTER 1994

INVESTMENT REPORT

BASIC RETIREMENT FUNDS

Investment Objectives

The Basic Retirement Funds are composed of the
retirement assets for currently working participants in
eight statewide retirement funds. The Funds serve as
accumulation pools for the pension contributions of public
employees and their employers during the employees'
years of active service. Approximately 250,000 public
employees participate in the Basic Funds.

Employee and employer contribution rates are specified in
state law as a percentage of an employee's salary. The
rates are set so that contributions plus expected investment
earnings will cover the projected cost of promised pension
benefits. In order to meet these projected pension costs,

the Basic Retirement Funds must generate investment
returns of at least 8.5% on an annualized basis, over time.

Normally, pension assets will accumulate in the Basic
Retirement Funds for thirty to forty years during an
employee's years of active service. This provides the
Basic Funds with a long investment time horizon and
permits the Board to take an aggressive, high expected
return investment policy which incorporates a sizeable
equity component in order to meet or exceed its actuarial
return target.

Asset Growth

The market value of the Basic Retirement Funds' assets
decreased 3.9% during the first quarter of 1994.

Billions

Negative investment returns and net withdrawals

accounted for the decrease.

100 F--- -~

BOF---- -

Market Value

6.0 |

40 [

2.0

0.0

N S T Y Y I A S U A U Ty O O O S O S O O N S

O N . R . O

Last Five Years

In Millions Latest Qtr.
12/89 12/90 12/91 12/92 12/93 3/94
Beginning Value $5,420 $6,875  $6,919  $8,639 $9,191 §10,086
Net Contributions 269 91 -92 -34 <239 -187
Investment Return 1,186 -47 1,812 586 1,134 -202
Ending Value $6,875  $6,919 $8,639  $9,191 $10,086 9,697



INVESTMENT REPORT FIRST QUARTER 1994

BASIC RETIREMENT FUNDS
Asset Mix

The actual asset mix changed only slightly from the prior
quarter. This was due primarily to market movements.

The long-term asset allocation of the Basic Funds is based
on the superior performance of common stocks over the
history of the capital markets. The asset mix is designed to
add value to the Basic Funds over their long-term

investment time horizon.
Domestic Stocks 50.0%
Int'l. Stocks 10.0
Domestic Bonds 24.0
Alternative Assets* 15.0
Unallocated Cash 1.0

*Alternative assets include real estate, venture capital and
resource funds.

CIAR. Assets
W Cash

[Z2Dom. Bonds §
MRint'l. Stocks fi
m8Dom. Stocks §

A S N G 4

Last Five Years Latest Qtr.

12/89 12/90 12/91 12/92 12/93 3/94
Domestic Stocks 60.2% 59.1% 63.9% 579% 49.9% 49.0%
Int'l. Stocks 0.0 0.0 0.0 32 10.0 10.3
Domestic Bonds 26.4 26.2 24.7 28.5 29.4 28.6
Real Estate 7.5 7.0 4.8 42 4.1 42
Private Equity 2.8 42 4.7 42 4.6 5.1
Resource Funds 14 1.5 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.0
Unallocated Cash 1.7 2.0 038 0.8 0.9 1.8
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%



FIRST QUARTER 1994 INVESTMENT REPORT

BASIC RETIREMENT FUNDS

Total Fund Performance

The Basic Funds' performance is evaluated relative to a composite of market indices. The composite is weighted in a
manner that reflects the long-term asset allocation of the Funds:

Basics
Basics Market Compoasite
Target Index 1/1/94
Domestic Stocks 50.0% Wilshire 5000 50.0%
Int'l. Stocks 10.0 EAFE 10.0
Domestic Bonds 24.0 Salomon BIG 29.0*
Alternative Assets 15.0 Wilshire Real Estate 4.0%
Private Equity Funds 5.0%
Resource Funds 1.0*
Unallocated Cash 1.0 91 Day T-Bills 1.0
100.0% 100.0%

* Alternative asset and bond weights are reset in the composite each quarter to reflect the amount of unfunded
commitments in alternative asset classes.

Percent
18
16 - - -t
14 |- - - - - - - - s s s s s e e s e s s e e e e
- R TN NN I N BN SN
10fF-----------=----
- N Basic Funds §
- L Com site

_4 1 ) - i L
Qtr Yr. 3vr. SYr.
Period Ending 3/31/94
Annualized
Qtr. Yr. 3Yr. 5Yr.
Basic Funds -2.1% 51% 10.4% 11.2%
Composite Index** -2.0 53 9.6 10.7

**Adjusted to reflect the SBI's restrictions on liquor and tobacco stocks through 3/31/93 and AHP restriction through
10/31/93.

Effective July 1, 1993, the Basic and Post Funds share the same stock, domestic bond and international stock managers. See
pagel4 for the performance of these asset pools. Performance of the Basic Funds' alternative assets is on page 15.

10



FIRST QUARTER 1994

INVESTMENT REPORT

POST RETIREMENT FUND

The Post Retirement Investment Fund contains the
pension assets of retired public employees covered by
statewide retirement plans. Approximately 60,000 retirees
receive monthly annuities from the assets of the Fund.

Upon an employee's retirement, a sum of money sufficient
to finance the fixed monthly annuity is transferred from
accumulation pools in the Basic Funds to the Post Fund.
In order to support promised benefits, the Post Fund must
"earn" at least 5% on its invested assets on an annualized
basis. If the Post Fund exceeds this earnings rate, excess
earnings are used to finance permanent benefit increases
for eligible retirees.

Through fiscal year 1992, unrealized capital gains (or
losses) were excluded from the statutory definition of

earnings. For this reason the Post Fund previously was not
designed to maximize long-term total rates of return.
Rather, the SBI attempted to generate a high, consistent
stream of realized earnings for the Post Fund that
maintained current benefits, as well as produced benefit
increases over time.

Beginning in fiscal year 1993, the post retirement benefit
increase formula is based on total return rather than
realized earnings. As a result, the Board has adopted a
new long-term asset allocation strategy for the Post Fund
which incorporates a substantial commitment to common
stocks. The transition to the new asset allocation strategy
was completed by the start of fiscal year 1994 (7/1/93).

Asset Growth

The market value of the Post Retirement Fund decreased
by 0.3% during the first quarter of 1994. The decrease

was due to negative investment performance despite net
contributions.

1o Bllons
Y 3 A P
i Market Vaiue
LYo B S A S S N N RN R bt
B0 Lo e — -
o Confributions P
20 et
L
0‘0llllIIlllIllIIlllllllLIllllIlJ_lIl14L
A N )
& & S S S
In Millions Latest Qtr.
12/89 12/90 12/91 12/92 12/93 3/94
Beginning Value $4,434 $5238 $5,590 $6,855 $7,500  $8,766
Net Contributions 25 88 162 95 386 211
Investment Return 779 264 1,103 550 880 -235
Ending Value $5238 $5,590  $6,855 $7,500 $8,766  $8,742

11



INVESTMENT REPORT

FIRST QUARTER 1994

POST RETIREMENT FUND
Asset Mix

The Board adopted a new asset allocation strategy for the
Post Fund in fiscal year 1993 which reflects the new post
retirement benefit increase formula recently enacted by
the Legislature. Throughout fiscal year 1993, the actual
asset mix of the Post Fund moved toward a 50%
allocation to common stocks. In fiscal year 1994, the
Board added allocations to international stocks and
alternative investments.

The large allocation to common stocks will allow the
Fund to increase the long-term earning power of its assets
and allow the Fund to focus on generating higher long-
term total rates of return.

Funding for alternative assets began during the quarter
with a small private equity investment. International
stocks are slightly above the target allocation due to
market movements.

Domestic Stocks 50.0%
Int'l. Stocks 10.0
Domestic Bonds 32.0
Alternative Assets 5.0
Unallocated Cash 3.0
Total 100.0%
Percent
0
90 -
80 -
70
60 CIDom. Stocks §
501 ERint!. Stocks |
40 (CIDom. Bonds |
30 A 8 Cash
10
S N v >
OSSR
Last Five years Latest Qtr.
12/89 12/90 12/91 12/92 12/93 3/94
Dom. Stocks 10.2% 7.9% 8.5% 30.6% 50.5% 50.1%
Int'l. Stocks 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 10.0 10.6
Dom. Bonds 87.1 88.5 80.0 65.6 36.9 36.8
Alt. Assets 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0*
Unallocated Cash 2.7 3.6 5.0 3.8 2.6 2.5
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

* less than 0.1%

12



FIRST QUARTER 1994 INVESTMENT REPORT

POST RETIREMENT FUND

Total Fund Performance

The Post Fund's performance is evaluated relative to a composite of market indices. The composite is weighted in a manner
that reflects the long-term asset allocation of the Fund:

Post

Post Market Composite
Asset Class Target Index 1/1/94
Domestic Stocks 50% Wilshire 5000 50.0%
Int'l. Stocks 10 EAFE 10.0
Domestic Bonds 32 Salomon BIG 37.0*
Alternative Assets 5 - 0.0*
Unallocated Cash 3 91 Day T-Bills 3.0

100% 100.0%

* Until the alternative asset allocation is fully funded, the composite will be overweighted in bonds.

The asset mix of the Post Fund was moved toward a 50% stock allocation during fiscal year 1993. The performance of the
fund since the transition was completed is shown below.

Qtr. Since 7/1/93

Post Fund -2.6% 2.2%
Composite Index 2.6 1.9

Effective July 1, 1993, the Basic and Post Funds share the same domestic stock, domestic bond and international stock
managers. See page14 for the performance of these asset pools.

13



INVESTMENT REPORT

FIRST QUARTER 1994

STOCK AND BOND MANAGERS

Performance of Asset Pools

Domestic Stock Pool

Target: Wilshire 5000 Adjusted*

Expectation: If half of the pool is actively managed and
half is passively managed, the entire pool is expected to
exceed the target by +.20-.45% annualized, over time.

Annualized
Qtr. Yr. 3 Yrs. 5Yrs.
Stock Pool -3.5% 25% 10.3% 11.6%
Wilshire 5000* -3.8 2.5 10.3 11.8

*Buy/hold index adjusted for liquor and tobacco

restrictions through 3/31/93 and AHP restriction through
10/31/93.

Domestic Bond Pool

Value Added to Wishire 5000 Adjusted*
Percent

00% 00%

Qtr Yr avr. 5Yr

Target: Salomon Broad Investment Grade (BIG) Index
Expectation: If half of the pool is actively managed and
half is managed semi-passively, the entire pool is expected
to exceed the target by +.20-.35% annualized, over time.

Annualized
Qtr. Yr. 3 Yrs. 5Yrs.
Bond Pool -2.8% 3.6% 9.9% 10.8%
Salomon BIG 2.8 2.6 9.1 10.5

Value Added to Salomon BIG

2 1 il A L
Qtr Yr. avr 5Yr
International Stock Pool
Target: EAFE
Expectation: If half of the pool is managed actively and Value Added to EAFE
half managed passively, the entire pool is expected to o Porcent

exceed the target by +.25-.75% annualized, over time.

Since
Qtr. Yr. 10/1/92
Int'l. Pool 1.6% 22.0% 19.9%
EAFE 35 22.5 20.3

Q. Yr Since 10/1/92



INVESTMENT REPORT FIRST QUARTER 1994

ALTERNATIVE ASSET MANAGERS
Performance of Asset Pools

Real Estate Pool (Basic Funds only)

Expectation: Real estate investments are expected to Annualized
exceed the rate of inflation by 3-5% annualized, over the Qtr. Yr. 3Yrs. 5Yrs.
life of the investment.

Real Estate -1.3% -1.2% -5.9% -3.1%
The Wilshire Real Estate Index contains returns of 30 Real Estate Index -1.3 -4.0 -7.6 -4.4
commingled funds. The index does not include returns
from funds that are less than 3 years old or are not fully Inflation 1.0 25 29 3.8
invested.

Private Equity Pool (Basic Funds only)

Expectation: Private equity investments (primarily Annualized
venture capital) are expected to provide annualized Qtr. Yr. 3Yrs. S5Yrs.
returns at least 3% greater than historical public equity

returns, over the life of the investment. This equates to an Private Equity 8.5% 25.0% 21.3% 16.8%

absolute return of approximately 13-14% annualized.

The SBI began its venture capital programs in the mid-
1980's. Some of the investments, therefore, are relatively
immature and returns may not be indicative of future
results.

Resource Pool (Basic Funds only)

Expectation: Resource investments (primarily oil and gas) Annualized
are expected to exceed the rate of inflation by 3-5% Qtr. Yr. 3Yrs. S5Yrs.
annualized, over the life of the investment.

Resource Funds -1.0% 44% 64% 55%
The SBI began its resource program in the mid-1980's.
Some of the investments, therefore, are relatively
immature an